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State of Ohio, )

County of Lake. )

ROSALIE COOK,

Plaintiff

Case No. 89 CIlV 1144
VS.

Judge James W. Jackson
ELIZABETH MASITTO, et al.,

L N W I -

Defendants

DEPOSITION OF ROBERT CURTIS CORN, M.D.

Monday, November 12, 1990

The deposition of ROBERT CURTIS CORN, M.D., a
witness herein, called by counsel on behalf of the
Defendants for examination under the Ohio Rules of
Civil Procedure, taken before me, Toni M. Salopek, a
Registered Professional Reporter and Notary Public
within and for the State of Ohio, by agreement of
counsel, at the offices of Dr. Robert Corn, 850
Brainard Road, Highland Heights, Ohio, commencing at

5:45 p.m., on the day and date above set forth.
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APPEARANCES:

On behalf of the Plaintiff:

On

David Goldense, Esq.

Paul Wolf, Esq.

Dubvak & Goldense

920 Terminal Tower
Cleveland, Ohio 44113-2206

behalf of the Defendants:

G. Michael Curtin, Esq.
Keller, scully & Williams
330 Hanna Building
Cleveland, Ohio 44115

ALSO PRESENT:

Barry Hersh, Videographer
Cynthia Curtin
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ROBERT CURTIS CORN, M.D.

a witness herein, called by the Defendants pursuant to
the Rules, having been first duly sworn as hereinafter

certified, was examined and deposed as follows:

MR. CURTIN: Initially, let the record
reflect that this is the deposition of Dr. Robert
Corn, which is being taken pursuant to notice,
and 1t"s my understanding that the statutory and
procedural formalities of notice, service, and
the filing of this deposition will be waived.

Is that correct?

MR. GOLDENSE: We will waive any defects
as to the time or taking of Doctor"s deposition.
As to the filing, I make no such waiver at the
moment.

MR. CURTIN: Thank you.

This deposition is being taken upon direct
examination in order to preserve the doctor®s
testimony for use at the time of the trial of
this case brought by Rosalie Cook against my
client, Elizabeth Masitto, said action bearing
Case No. 89 CIV 1144, before the Honorable Judge
Jackson in the Court of Common Pleas, Lake

County, Ohio.
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DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CURTIN:
Q. Doctor, would you please state your full name for
the record?
A. Robert Curtis Corn.
Q. What i1s your current professional address, and
are we at that address today?
A. My office address is 850 Brainard Road 1in

Highland Heights, Ohio; and, yes, we"re here today.

Q. What 1s your profession?
A. I"m an orthopedic surgeon.
Q. When were you first licensed to practice medicine

in the State of Ohio?

A In 1976.

Q. It"s my understanding that your specialty is in
the field of medicine known as orthopedic surgery; is
that correct, Doctor?

A. Yes, 1t 1Is.

Q. Would you please explain to the Ladies and
Gentlemen of the Jury what is involved with that
specific specialty?

A. Well, orthopedic surgery is that branch of
medicine which involves the medical and surgical
treatment of disorders, diseases, and Injuries to the

musculoskeletal system.
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That includes the muscles, bones, tendons,
joints, ligaments, and i1t also has a number of
sub~specialties, such as surgery of the hand, surgery
for arthritis, sports medicine surgery, and surgery of
the spine.

o Are you board certified; and, if so, when were
you so board certified?

MR. GOLDENSE: Mr. Curtin, I°d be more
than willing to stipulate for the record that the
doctor 1is qualified to offer expert opinion
testimony to this Jury, if you"re so inclined.

MR. CURTIN: I appreciate that, Counsel,
but for the edification of the Jury, | just want
them to understand how experienced he really is.

MR. GOLDENSE: Feel free.

MR. CURTIN: Thank you, sir.

Q. Doctor, are you board certified, and when were
you so board certified?

A. Yes, I an board certified. And 1 was certified
approximately 10 years ago, 1In 1980.

Q. What i1s involved in the board certification of an
orthopedic surgeon?

A. Well, in 1980, the candidate for certification
had to have completed an approved orthopedic residency

that is approved by the American Board of Orthopedic




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

6

Surgery, practice in the clinical milieu, so to speak,
for one calendar year i1n one location.

And then the candidate would have to sit for an
oral and written examination which, at that time, was
given once a year.

And after satisfactorily completing all three
steps and passing the examination, the American Board
of Orthopedic Surgery would certify the candidate.

Q. Is board certification one of, if not the highest
achievement obtainable In your specialty?

A. Yes.

Q. Thank you, Doctor.

Would you please give the Ladies and Gentlemen of
the Jury a little of your background, including college
through medical school, as well as your iInternships and,
residencies, et cetera, up until the present time?

A. I received my Bachelor of Science in biology from
the aAlbright College in Reading, Pennsylvania in 1971.

I then moved to Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, where
I attended the Hahnemann University School of Medicine
from 1971 through 1975. |1 received my #.D. Degree from
that institution.

I then came out here to Cleveland, and from 1975
through 1979, I was an orthopedic fellow or resident at

the Cleveland Clinic.
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Workmen®s Compensation proceedings?

A Yes.

o Would you please tell the Ladies and Gentlemen of
the Jury whether you had an occasion to examine the
plaintiff 1n this particular matter, Rosalie Cook, at
my request?
A. Yes, 1 did.
Q. When did that examination take place and where
did 1t take place?
A The examination took place on August 20th, 1990,
here in my office.
Q. Doctor, as part of your office records, do you
have a copy of the report prepared and dated
September 6th, 1990 with regard to your examination of
the plaintiff and your findings upon that examination?
A. Yes, 1 do.
Q. Please feel free to refer to that report and any
other records you have available during your testimony
in answering any of my questions, as well as those of
counsel for the plaintiff.

Upon your first meeting the plaintiff, did you
obtain a history from her?
A. Yes, I did.
Q. Did she indicate In the history that she was

involved 1n a motor vehicle accident?
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12
tell us who ordered i1t and when i1t was accomplished?
A, It was ordered by Dr. Gabelman, and it was
performed on 6-3-88, at Dr. Cabelman’s office.

Q. Were there any other tests performed either by

Dr. Gabelman or at his request by another physician?

A Yes.
Q. Tell us about those, please, sir?
A. EMG or electromyogram and nerve conduction

studies were performed by a neurologist, Dr. Harold
Mars, who saw the patient on neurological consultation

for Dr. Gabelman.

Q- As it pertains to the EMG, what was the test
result?

A. The EMG_was normal.

Q. As it pertains to the nperve conduction study,

what was the test result?

A. Also normal.

Q- As it pertains to the CT scan, what was the test
result?

A. The CT scan was performed of her neck and -- pno,
I believe 1t was her low back. I believe this showed

some abnormality. I have to review the letter here.

The CT scan essentially showed some degenerative

e

“M“"W“mwmwwm«wmww
diSQWQQEEiEe at the L4-5 level, which is the second

lowest level of the low back.
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14
was five and a half years old at the time of this
evaluation, and she had just delivered recently on
June 8th, 1990 with her second child.

Q. Did she give any history of a loss from work
after our accident?

A. She lost approximately three days after the
accident. She said she missed, quote, off and on,
since that time.

She obviously was off during the latter stage of
her pregnancy, and 1 "believe had just returned to work
about two weeks before 1 had seen her from her
pregnancy leave.

Q. Doctor, did the plaintiff describe her physical

condition to you when you evaluated her in August of

199072
A. Yes.
Q. Would you please tell the Ladies and Gentlemen of

the Jury how the plaintiff described herself in August
of 19902
A. Well, at the time of the visit, she complained of
pain, essentially, In two areas, and these were the
neck and low back regions.

Concerning the neck, she described, quote, some
aching, end of quote, with changes in the weather.

This was also described as intermittent; that is, there
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was sometimes relieved by sitting.

Motrin, which 1s a non-steroid anti-inflammatory
medication seemed to relieve some of her symptoms. On
good days, she was totally asymptomatic, that i1s, felt
normal; on bad days, she would take Motrin throughout
the day.

She had not had any bad days, quote recently, end
of quote. She, as | stated before, had just gone back
to work about two weeks before this visit after her
pregnancy leave. There was no increase in her pain
since her return back to work.

Q. And, of course, the most recent absence from work
was not attributable to the accident, but rather her

recent pregnancy?

A. That was my understanding, yes.

Q. Did you conduct a physical examination, Doctor?
A. Yes, 1 did.

Q. What was your findings upon physical exam?

A. Well, physical examination revealed a pleasant

25-year old female, approximately five foot five,
weighing about 170 pounds.

Her gait pattern, that i1s, her ability to walk,
was normal. She was able to arise from a sitting
position, as well as climb up and down from an

examining table without difficulty.
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17
Q. Were you able to examine the neck area or the
cervical spine?
A, Yes.
Q. What were your findings upon physical examination
of the cervical spine?
A. Well, a complete physical examination was
performed and, essentially, there were no abnormal
findings.

There was a full range of motion in forward
flexion, that 1s putting the chin on the chest,
hyper-extension, which i1s looking backwards, lateral
bending and rotation, turning the head from side to
side.

There was no muscle spasm noted. There was no
muscle tightness noted, that i1s, any reflex to the
motion, or reflex muscle contraction, Her shoulders
examined normally, as did her elbows, wrists, and small
joints of the hand.

Circumferential measurements of her arms at the
axillary or the armpit level, the arm, mid-arm, forearr
level, and wrist level were symmetrical. There was no
evidence of any muscular atrophy, and no evidence of
any neurological abnormality on objective testing.

Q. Doctor, in layperson®s terms, how would you

describe the examination of the neck?
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uncontrolled contraction, sort of a charley horse, so
to speak, 1n a muscle.

Whereas, dysmetria is, the muscles don®"t seem to
fire In an appropriate order. There was none of this
noted.

Subjective would be complaints; complaints of
pain, complaints of radiation of pain, the sensations
of numbness, tingling, burning.

Basically, subjective is what someone would say:
objective 1s something that someone could see, touch,
feel or measure.

Q. The plaintiff did display some subjective

complaints, if I heard you correctly, in the lower back

area?
A. Yes.
Q. But as to a trained orthopedic surgeon®s eye,

looking €or objective signs, what if any, did you
discover, in the neck or low back area?

A. Well, as | stated above, at the time of this
evaluation, which was 1n August of 1990, there were no
objective findings that indicated any traumatic
abnormality, other than her postpartum obesity.

Q. And that postpartum obesity would relate to the

post-pregnancy, the post-delivery of the child,

correct?
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A. Yes.
Q. Doctor, have you detailed all the tests
performed, and are these tests approved and accepted
within your field and performed by other orthopedic
surgeons?
A. Yes, to both parts of the question.
Q. Did you have sufficient time 1n which to perform
a full and complete orthopedic evaluation of this
particular patient?
A. Yes, I did.

MR. GOLDENSE: Objection.

Q. Did you have an opportunity to review additional
medical records available, either prior to or
subsequent to your examination of the plaintiff iIn this
particular matter?
A. There were medical records and x-rays reviewed
subsequent to the examination.
Q. What records did you have available, and did they
give you a more complete picture of the plaintiff,
hersel f?
A. To answer the second part first, yes, they did.
The records that were reviewed were from Dr. Gabelman®s
office, Dr. Mars®" office, from a chiropractor, David
Sukalac, who was seen for a physical therapy only, as

well as the records from the Lake West Hospital.
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I also had the opportunity of reviewing the
actual Tilms from Advanced Imaging X-ray, which is,
essentially, Dr. Gabelman®s x-ray outfit. These
included lumbosacral spinal films, as well as the CT
scan of her lumbar spine.

Q. Doctor, from your examination of the plaintiff,
Rosalie Cook, from the oral history provided by her,
from the records reviewed, were you able to make a
diagnosis within a reasonable degree of medical

certainty as to her condition at the time of your

examination?

A. Yes, | was.
Q. What is that, Doctor?
A. My clinical impression was resolved cervical

sprain, resolving low back sprain, and there was no
evidence of a hernirated disc or neuromuscular
abnormality.

Q. Doctor, would this diagnosis be based upon the
assumption that all the medical records which you
reviewed, as well as the oral history provided by the
individual, were true statements?

A. Yes.

Q. Doctor, 1*d like to talk about, a little more,

some of the tests that were done.

Now, initially, 1 am going to hand to you, 1
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believe, what represents the EMG test you referred to

earlier?

A. Yes.

Q. Or they are the test results; 1Is that correct?
A. Yes, this 1s the test results and clinical

summary from Dr. Mars.

Q- Doctor, what portion of the body was the EMG

directed towards?

A. The left lower extremity,
Q. What is the left lower extremity, Doctor?
A. Well, basically, the left leg, including the

thigh and buttock area.
Q. Doctor, i1s there any relationship between the
possibility of a problem with one®*s low back and
numbness, tingling, or pain iIn the leg?
A. Sure.
Q. Would you please tell us a little bit about that
relationship?
A. I would say, certainly, in my clinical practice,
the major portion of people that complain of numbness
or tingling or funny feelings or weakness, or giving
out in the lower extremities, the etiology would be
from the low back.

Usually a pinched nerve of some sort or an

irritation of the nerve, which would weaken certain




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

; 24

muscle groups and would give abnormal sensory or

abnormal sensations of paln or numbness or tingling.

Q. Could a disability or dysfunction -- 1 think

medically i1t"s referred to -- 1n a lower disc area,

result in numbness or tingling iIn a leg?

AL Sure.

Q- Okay. sSo that®"s why I wanted to crystalize that

cause and effect or interrelationship between the two.
Now =--

A. It"s not the only cause, but i1it"s probably one of

more common causes.

Q. Now, there was a test done on the plaintiff~s

left leg: 1is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. To ascertain whether or not, clinically, this

test could correlate some complaints she had, correct?

MR. GOLDENSE: Objection.

Q. For what, 1f any, purpose was the EMG done,
Doctor?
A. I wasn"t her treating physician, so I am just

extrapolating from Dr. Gabelman®s records that there
was a suggestion on the CT scan of an abnormality at
the E4-5 level.

To corroborate an x-ray finding with her clinical

symptoms, a more precise, highly sensitive electrical
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study was ordered of her left lower extremity.

And this was basically in two parts: one of them
was the EMG, which is the electromyogram, that is,
physically sticking a needle -- a small needle, but
still a needle -- in various muscle groups and watching
the effect of that muscle being stuck on an
oscilloscope.

And the second one was actually, physically,
testing the conductivity of nerves, such as testing the
way a wire would conduct an electrical impulse.

So those are the two phases to rule out any
electrical abnormality, which would be a very sensitive
indicator of a disc irritation or nerve irritation.

Q. As it pertains to this plaintiff, what was the

result of the EMG and the nerve conduction study of her

left leg?

A, Both were entirely normal.

Q. Done by a neurologist, Dr. Harold Mars?

A, Yes.

Q- Let"s talk about the CT scan that was done of the

lower back.

Do you recall actually reviewing the films,
themselves?
A. Yes.

Q. Doctor, initially, is there a continuum, or a

MORSE. CGANTVURDA £ wARNAD
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either a free-floating fragment, that is something
that"s actually, physically outside of the disc, or it
can be still contained within the membranes of the disc
or the barrier of the disc.

Whether it"s herniated, whether it"s bulging, or
whether i1t"s a free fragment, that is, this piece has
gone beyond the confines, that, in and of itself
doesn™t really matter.

What matters i1s what structures are i1n the same
area as that material, and that i1s the spinal nerves 1In
the lower end of the spine: iIn the neck, 1t"s the
spinal cord itself.

Nerves do not like pressure, and any
manifestation of pressure on a nerve will cause
symptoms within certain distributions. There will be
certain muscle groups that will be weakened, there will
be certain reflexes that may be lost or diminished, and
there is certain electrical activity which would be
rendered abnormal to diagnostic testing.

IT you have a symptomatic herniated disc, and
let"s jJust use one example for that, and there 1s disc
material pushing on a nerve, you will have precise
physical complaints, subjective complaints. You will
have precise, almost universal, physical abnormalities.

And you will have a definite sign on a CT scan or MRI
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A, In my opinion, the degenerative disc disease 1S a
function of, possibly, her old low back injury,
probably her chronic obesity, and also influenced would
be her two pregnancies.
MR . GOLDENSE: Move to strike.
Q. Doctor, what i1f any, significance would a CT gc¢can

displaying a bulging disc have?

A. I'm not sure | understand what you mean.
Q. Okay .
A. But 1t, in and of itself, without matching

symptoms or some other testing, means nothing.
Q. That"s what 1*m getting at, Doctor.

IT you were to walk in to me, as an orthopedic
surgeon, and say, Mr. Curtin, there is evidence on the
CT scan of a bulging disc, what if anything, without
symptoms, does that represent to the patient?

A. It may just be something that you have to watch
out for: 1t may be a stimulus for you to lose some
weight and get a little bit more physically active.

But, essentially, i1t would not need any further
treatment, and 1t doesn"t deserve any treatment. It"s
an x-ray Tfinding.

Q. Doctor, as it pertains to -- you were talking
about this buttock or leg pain. You told us about the

EMG and the nerve conduction study and the result.
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A. No.
Q. Doctor, of course, the care and treatment
rendered by Dr. Gabelman, would give you some barometer
of the plaintiff®s recovery, would it not, sir?
A. Well, if he was her primary treating physician.
Q. Doctor, I am going to hand to you Dr. Gabelman®s
records and ask you to please examine that record dated
4-21-88.

First, do you see the record, Doctor, from the
first visit?

Or is it 4-20- 882
A. 4-20- 88.
Q. Thank you, Doctor.

As it pertains to the visit of 4-20-88, and, for

the record, you have Dr. Gabelman®s notes before you,

sir?
A. Yes.
Q. Is there any indication as to a potential return

to work date?

A She was given a return to work date as the
following day, 4-21- 88.

Q. Okay. And was there a follow-up visit wherein
she presented herself again to Dr. Gabelman®s office?
A. She came 1n on 4-22-88, the day after she was

scheduled to go back to work, and got a return to work
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MR . GOLDENSE: Objection.
A. Yes, | was.
Q. What was that opinion, Doctor?

MR. GOLDENSE: Note my continuing

objection.

A. My opinion was that the prognosis was favorable.
Q. Doctor, you indicate iIn your report that there
was an absence of objective signs to support the
subjective complaints.

Based upon a review of all the medical records,
your physical examination, and the history provided by
the plaintiff, were you able to reach an opinion, based
upon a reasonable degree of medical certainty, as to
whether or not the plaintiff sustained a permanent
injury as a direct and proximate result of the motor
vehicle accident of April 18th, 19887?

MR . GOLDENSE: Objection.

A. Yes, I have an opinion.
Q. What is that opinion, sir?
A. My opinion would be that there was no permanent

injury sustained at the time of this accident in
gquestion.

Q. Doctor, you®"ve had to take time out from a very
busy orthopedic practice in order to present testimony

this evening, and I would like you to advise us as to




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

36

whether or not you will charge for the time which
you"ve had to take out from your practice and,
obviously, not see any patients in order to present
this testimony?
A. Yes.
MR. CURTIN: Thank you very much, Doctor.
I have nothing further.
Counsel?
MR . GOLDENSE: Let"s go off the record.
(Thereupon, a discussion was had off
the record.)
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. GOLDENSE:
Q. Doctor, my named is David Goldense. We met
briefly a few minutes ago. As you know,. I trust, I
represent Rosalie Cook 1In connection with this personal
injury action brought against the Metropolitan Casualty
Insurance Company, who Mr. Curtin represents.
You had a chance to examine Mrs. Cook back in

August of 1990 at Mr. Curtin®s request; is that

correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And when you examined her, you did so for the

purpose of being able to take the oath today and

testify on behalf of the defense of this case; i1s that
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to have, at least as of the time of your accident, some
low back sprain problem; is that correct?

MR. CURTIN: He didn"t have an accident.
Examination. You said his accident.
MR. GOLDENSE: Oh, 1"m sorry.
MR. CURTIN: Same way I said I represent
Ms. Masitto instead of Metropolitan. We all make
such errors.
MR. GOLDENSE: I misspoke.
MR. CURTIN: I did the same thing myself.
Q. Doctor, in this particular case, you conducted an
examination in August of 1990; i1s that correct?
A Yes.
Q. And at that time, it was your diagnostic opinion,
was 1t not, that there was a still resolving low back

sprain that Mrs. Cook sustained, correct?

A. By symptoms only, yes.

Q. And by symptoms, that means what she told you,
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And physicians regularly rely on the history and

information they obtain from patients in making a
diagnosis, don"t they?
A. I would say that a competent physician would rely

partially on what the patient says.
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Q. I did not mean to imply anything else.
A. But, certainly, the history is not the only thing
one should consider. Especially when there 1is

discrepancy or disparity between complaints and
objective findings.
Q. I didn"t mean to imply for a minute, Doctor --
and if you took my meaning to the extent that history
was the only component of making a diagnosis, we didn"t
communicate effectively. Let me rephrase my question.

You agree, do you not, that history is a precise
medical term of art, do you not?
A. I'm not really sure what you mean by that.
Q. Well, history means something special to a
doctor, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And 1t means the past events that a patient
relates to a physician as part of the care and
treatment that the physician i1s to provide, correct?
A Yes, and it also relates to the present
condition, as well.
Q. Yes.

And that is a component, is 1t not, of every
physician®s diagnosis, the history given by the
patient.

A. Well, 1 wouldn"t say necessarily the diagnosis,
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with Dr. El Shaar®s interpretation as set forth in the
exhibit that you have iIn front of you; iIs that correct?
A. My opinion would differ, yes.

Q. Now, do you actually have the CAT Scan films here
in your office today?

A. I looked for them: I could not find them. I did
at one time, obviously, have them, 1"m not sure what
was done with them.

I believe they were sent back to Mr. Curtin®s
office, but I really don™"t have any i1ndependent
recollection now.

Q- Does your file reflect anywhere, your handwritten
notes or dictated notes of your reading of this CAT
Scan that you don®"t have any more?

A. I don*"t follow you.

Q. Do you have any record right there i1n front of

you on your desk of your --

A. The only record 1 --

Q. Let me finish my question.

A. Okay .

Q. Do you have any record right there in front of

you on your desk of your interpretation of the CAT Scan
films?
A. Other than that included in my letter, no.

Q. You didn"t make any notes as you were looking at
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that you made at the time that you actually interviewed

Mrs. Cook?

A. Yes.

Q. So those would be the quotations about the --
A. That®"s right.

Q. -- extent of the property damage and the actual
times -- in your direct testimony several times you

said quote, unquote?
A. That"s correct.
Q. And so these are the handwritten notes that
you®"ve called superfluous?
A. Well, they're superfluous once the report 1is
written, yes.
Q. Okay. Going back, then, to the radiologist,
Dr. EI Shaar®"s, iInterpretation of the CAT Scan, which
you have in front of you with the yellow number one on
it, Doctor.
Do you agree or disagree with his statement that

the spinal canal --

MR. CURTIN: Objection.
Q. -- and lateral recesses at the L4-L5 disc region
appear narrowed, based on your reading of the films
that you conducted?

MR. CURTIN: Objection. Move to strike.

A. I don"t recall that right now.
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it not, that multiple pregnancies that Mrs. Cook
svrerienced were a cause of the degenerative disease
you saw when you read her CAT Scan films?

A. My opinion is that one can get degenerative disc
disease with multiple pregnancies.

Q- Okay .

A. I have no idea what the etiology is, except that

it"s, in all likelihood, not trauma.

Q. You mean for Rosalie Cook?

A. Yes.

Q. All right. I"m not sure if that was a yes or no.
Does --

A. The answer is that multiple pregnancies can

contribute to degenerative disc disease.

Q. Did they for Rosalie Cook?

A. I don"t know.

Q. Okay.

A. I don*"t think anybody knows. It is my opinion

that her obesity and her pregnancies contributed much
more than the alleged iInjuries.

And when you say alleged iInjuries, you mean the
automobile accident of April 18th 1988 that has us here
tonight?

A. Yes. I would be more concerned with the earlier

injury being more of a source than the injury that
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we"re here discussing.

Q.

the

Okay. Now, did you ever see any records of

-- by the earlier injury, you®"re talking about a

1983 accident, right?

A.

Q.

Correct.

Did you ever see any medical records from the

1983 accident?

A. I don"t believe there were any.

Q. I didn"t ask if there were any; | asked if you
saw any?

A. No.

Q. You never saw any records from a 1983 accident,
did you?

A. Not to my recollection,

Q. And you don*"t know if she ever even saw a

physician in the 1983 accident, do you?

A.

Off the top of my head, | would say no, but 1

really don"t remember.

Q.

And you don"t know if there were any CAT Scan

studies done at the time of her 1983 accident, do you?

A.

Q.

A.

Q.

she

I"m pretty sure there was not a CAT Scan done.
Okay .

I asked her.

And you have no idea or the period of time which

may have treated with a physician back 1n 1983, do

MORSE. GANTVERG £ WANAR
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you?
A. Not off the top of my head, no.
Q. Now, she did tell you in her history, did she

not, that she had been symptom-free for five years

after this accident, up until this accident in 1988,

correct?
A. That"s what she said, yes.
Q. Now, do you totally discount her truthfulness in

saying that she had been symptom-free from 1983 to the
time of this accident in 1988, in offering the
testimony that you just did, that it"s more likely that
the 1983 accident was the cause of her back?
A. I don"t think 1t has anything to do with
truthfulness or not truthfulness.

The natural history of degenerative disc disease
IS that it takes many years to develop after an injury;
that an "83 i1njury showing up in 1989 would be far more
likely than an injury in 1988 contributing to the
appearance or the development «f degenerative disc
disease.

I don"t doubt that she was pain-free -- she"s
pain-free now, and 1t"s not five years after the 1988
injury. I don"t think that really has any pertinence

in this at all.

The fact is that, in my opinion, degenerative

MARQE CARNMIITD A~ & XA/
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disc disease, if it"s caused or initiated by trauma,
takes many years to develop.

So it is not incompatible or unbelievable to me
that she was symptom-free FfOr many years.
Q. Okay. and, Doctor, you also agree, don"t you,
that trauma can cause an acute abnormality of an
intervertebral disc, do you not?
A. An acute trauma will only damage a previously

damaged intervertebral disc, acutely.

it

There are no such things as acute herniated discs

that occur on a normal disc. So there has to be a
degenerative disc disease or a previous trauma
experienced, 1If there®"s a true documented herniated
disc, that is free fragment or more than a half
centimeter mass protruding beyond the rim of the
annulus.

Q. I*m sorry, Doctor. |1 tried to use the word

abnormality and avoid this definitional problem of

bulges, herniations, and ruptures that was suggested by

Counsel 1n direct examination, so --

A. The problem --

Q. -- using the term abnormality that you saw in
Rosalie Cook®"s intervertebral disc, is It Impossible
that that abnormality you saw, whatever we choose to

call 1t, occurred iIn the April 18th, 1988 accident?

|




STU3 USUM MOUX O3 ggeT ‘Y3gl 1Tady @2J03Feq woig
ued>s LY3 ® <«&S 03 @od<du ATTes1 MoKk 3 uplmow @uy - @
PCEXXND3S0 3T UBYM MOUY 3 ,U0p I ¥

"TPpaIanooo

OSTp TRAM33ICMABIUT I8Y UT LA3TTRWIOUQE BY3 USBYUM e
(peusddey jeym uaym ‘3INs 30U w, I Y

"®9DUBDTITUDLTS S,3T 10U —- o}

cpauaddey 3eym uayp a4

-- @©@<us®Cey 3T udym sew uoT3ednb AW I03dDO0(Q o}

SmIsuo@sdIun XITE303 Sem IJSMsSUe STH
*33TI3Ss 03 3MO uoT3io<{¢0 FHESNEATOOD UK
pPautol &g ued OmM3 850Ul 3IEBYJ SPIAODII TeOTI@eW
Y3l UO UOT3IEODTPUT Ou ATEINTOSME = JdISgl @UE susT@oxd
I8¢ IT® FO ®DIMOE dU3 <«3ITM 3eys Hurtaembd sx1 nog
Sea-x
TO0 USJE Aj3IlelWIoume ue ATaxm@ s 3I *BSTJ Purtyzlue
10 SJTJITTBUIOUME TEBOTIIDSTSOIM U TeDTIUTITD HBuTyoaielW Hue
Inoy3lTs ‘HUTpuTy TeOTHOTOIPEI B AT9a3W ST 23BYL
*Asad0s3BUYM SDouUBDTITUDTS
TeD2TUIT2 AU®B S®BQ BT YUTYl 2 uOp I oJdsmeda@ nok
AG =T 3T LABM JdYl UO [YF3IBIJIUSDUOD dJI¢ @IMOUS A3iTTeWIOUm®E
°STM@ <U3l el dodITAB@ 3 uom@ I AYm £ 3J3BYJ PpUE
8Nax]l semMm 3T JIT JSEBD TBMSNUN ATTeE®X ® J@ @InNos 27T
STqeqox@® ATTEOTIM@CW ATQERUOSEBRXY
30u sT 3T Aes pinom I ;@TqIissodwTl 3T SI Y

o=

4

¥Z

34

¢t

¢

0¢

8T

LT

91

R

VI

€T

(4"

17

0T



ButyzAue uesw j30u LevwW 3T puy *3usTied 8s8go uUB UTI 3s913
d3eanooe 8xow ® 5 LATUTBRIISD pTnNom IYW ue ang

"PESI 03 3ITNOTIITP Lisa pue 38adas3ut

©3 3INOTIITP AIsa 3x8m A8yl ‘SWITI Io9Y UT uUseS se ‘pue
‘oT3soubetrp AI3a 30U ATTENSN 8IB SUBDS LD Syl

*82TS S ,UBWOM BY3 IO

@snedo8q ‘ueds IYW ue 1snl KoTdws pinom I I8y IO ueDS

LD ® @UOpP SABY 30U PINOoM I ‘uoTutdo AW UT ‘TTIoM ‘Y

¢3083I0D0 3BY3} ST :UOTJBUTWEX® INo& 03 jusnbasqns

paidoTdws sa®Y 03 T003 oIasouberp xadoad e ussq

daey pInos ‘IYW U® IO ‘3s83 DHurhHewT sdouUBUOSaI DTjzoubeuw

B ®S5BD STUY3 UT 3eBY] S33be op noi ‘MON v 9:-b{e! e}

3STX8 03 ¥deg $,%00D SSIW UT PaAIaSgO

Se yons A3TTeBUIOWCR UB JIOJ uotrjejusssad IeoIboTOTPRA

20 uoT3e3jussaxd TeOTUTITD Jo ad&3 3eBUY3 8gTIosaep pTnom

3BY3 }0O0g3Xa3 SUO IO 8DUSISISI suUO0 10 oTdWEXS TEDTUTTD

SUO0 FO HUTY] 3 ,UBD I -~ sTseq LAITep ® uc ATTENIITA
®2SES8STP OSTp U3Tsu oT7dosd 3813 I PUB -- BHpPaTMOUY
Aw uo passeq ‘uUuBBW I -- 3IBYJ HUTY3 3,U0p I Y

-- JUTY3s Noi puy ie)

*saesd& us3l 03 8ATI ATqrssod ‘aury

20 poTaal®@ HBuoT Xasa B IsA0 psdoTssep ATMOTS 3T HUIY3I

I ‘pea1anopo A3TTeBWIOUE TEBNIDE 88Ul HUTY3 3 ,U0p I " Y
ipsaanooo ‘3oeI UT

‘KTTen3oe 3T TIeD 031 ®8sO0yUD dm Js8msijeysm ‘'KLAiTTeRUIOUQE

£S

S¢
ve
€c
ze
1C
0t
61
81
LT
9T
ST
v
€1
¢t
11

0T



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

54

from a clinical standpoint, because there were no
symptoms, but 1 would have ordered an MRl scan.

Q. Doctor, is it not correct that she weighed 170
pounds according to Dr. Gabelman®s chart at the time of

this CT scan back 1n June of 19887

A. I don"t know.

Q. Well, you have Dr. Gabelman®s records right jn
front of you,, It"s not --

A. You must have them in front of you, too, Oor you

wouldn"t be asking me that.
Do you know what page they®"re on?
Q. You"re the one who gets to testify, Doctor, |"nm

only allowed to ask questions.

A. Okay. Well, why don"t you find them for me --
Q. I'll be glad to.
A. -- and then 1"11 be glad to answer your question.

MR. GOLDENSE: Let"s go off the record.
(Thereupon, a discussion was had off
the record.)
MR. GOLDENSE: Back on record.
BY MR. GOLDENSE:
Q. Doctor, when we went off the record, | had a

chance to look through the records that you®"ve had as

part of your chart and found Dr. Mars®™ report that he

wrote as part of the record iIn this case that you
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reviewed; i1s that correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And Dr. Mars saw Mrs. Cook twice in the month of
August i1n 1988; did he not?
A. Yes.
Q. And he recorded her weight on both of those
visits, did he not?
A. Yes.
Q. And on one visit he recorded her weight at 170
pounds; is that correct?
A, Yes.
Q. And on the second visit, he recorded her weight
at 169 pounds; i1s that correct?
A. Well, 1 think it was the other way around- On

the first visit 1t was 169, and the second one was 17¢0.

Q. Okay. We agree to that.
A. Which, essentially, is the same number.
Q. Now, @s that sufficient weight to be obese to

cause the low back disorder of a degenerative disc
disease that you“ve testified to earlier?

A. IT it persists over a period of time, sure.

Q. Are you aware of the fact that prior to the CAT
Scan 1n June of 1988, there had not been multiple
pregnancies, but only one for Mrs. Cook?

A That®"s true.
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Q. Dr. Corn, you have regularly made a part of your
practice offering your services to the defense of
personal iInjury cases over the last few years, have you
not?
A. I am equally available to the plaintiff"s side,
as well as 1 am to the defense side.
Q. I appreciate that, Doctor. My question was a
little different.

You have offered your services regularly over the
last few years to the defense of personal Injury cases:
IS that correct?

A. Yes, 1| have.
Q. And, Doctor, approximately how many cases a week
do you review, say, In 1990 -- here we are at the end

of the year in November of 1990 -- how many cases per

week 1n 1990 have you reviewed for the defense of

personal injury actions?

A. At the least zero, at the most, two.

Q. Okay. And what would be --

A. I would say an average of four or five a month.
Q. And has four or five a month been the average for

the last two or three years prior to this time --
AL I have no 1dea.
Q. -- 1n November of 19907

A. I have no idea.
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MR . GOLDENSE: Let"s go off the record.
(Thereupon, a discussion was had off
the record.)
MR. GOLDENSE: Back on the record.
BY MR. GOLDENSE:
Q. Dr. Corn, Mr. Curtin asked you some gquestions
during his direct examination, and particularly turned
your attention to an October 29th, 1988 visit, at which
time you testified that Mrs. Cook reported herself to
be okay, 1s that correct, referring to the October
29th, 1988 visit with pr. Gabelman?
A Yes.
Q. Now, @n Ffact, Doctor, you have records in front
of you showing that she returned again December 30th,
1988 to Dr. Gabelman®s office, reporting a flare-up of
pain; i1s that correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And she, again, reported in September of 1989,
that she had pain in the back occurring three to four
times a week: i1s that correct?
A Well, Ffirst of all, if I can answer your
question, the December, 1980 showed a flare-up of her
low back =--

Q. 1988.

A. I"m sorry, "88 -- when she said, quote, she does
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My question was only what she reported to

Dr. Gabelman, not what she reported to you.

A

Q.

Well, that"s what she reported to Dr. Gabelman.

In February of 1930, she did report to

Dr. Gabelman increased pain 1n her buttock area and

lower
A.

Q.

back on the left, correct?
That®s what his notes say.

Okay. And those notes were part of your chart

when you examined her in August of 1990, correct?

A

BY MR.

Q.

They were available for my review, yes.

MR . GOLDENSE: I have no further
questions.

MR. CURTIN: Let"s go off the record,
please.

(Thereupon, a discussion was had off
the record.)

(Thereupon, Defendants' Exhibits A and B
(Dr. Corn) were marked for identification.)

MR. CURTIN: Okay. Let"s go back on the
record.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

CURTIN:

Doctor, taking things in the order that they were

just described or i1nquired to by opposing counsel.

First, February of 1990, the plaintiff had some
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A. I have, I would say, fairly extensive experience
and an ongoing experience. I would say 1 see more
plaintiffs for evaluation and treatment than | do
defense examination.
Q. Doctor, there was some discussion between
yourself and my opposing counsel relating to whether or
not an abnormality In an L4-L5 area, represented a
problem.

Now, 1°d like you to assume the following set of
facts: First, that myself, 1"m a 34-year old man who
participated in high school and college sports; 1"ve
never sustained any significant injury, but like many
other individuals my age, 1"ve ignored my doctor®s
recommendations and have become overweight.

Do you have an opinion, based upon a reasonable
degree of medical certainty, as to whether or not, if 4
CAT Scan was performed on my lower back area, whether
or not any abnormality could be detected?

And 1*d further like you to assume | have no
lower back complaints either now or iIn the recent
history.

MR. GOLDENSE: Objection.
THE WITNESS: I figured that was coming.

MR. GOLDENSE: Yes, 1t was pretty clear.

A. In general, | would not be terribly surprised if




63
1| there was a CT abnormality of degenerative disc

2 | disease, and, 1n fact, 1 would probably expect 1t.

3| Q. Well, 1 might object to that myself, Doctor. I

4 | didn"t know you would expect it.

51| A. Nothing personal.
6 | Q. All right, nothing taken.
7 Let"s talk about Defendants®™ Exhibit A. Let me

8 | refer you to that, first.

9 My opposing counsel asked you questions relating
10 | to whether or not pr. Gabelman®s records, as contained
11 | in Defendants®™ Exhibit A, represents the totality of

12 | the records you reviewed from that physician®s office:

13 Do you recall those questions?
14 | A, Not specifically.
15| Q. Doctor, please examine your report, Page 2, and

16 | tell us whether or not there®s any indication as to

17 whether, in the 1983 accident, the plaintiff was

18 treated by Dr. Gabelman according to the history she

19 provided to you?

20 MR. GOLDENSE: Objection,

21 A, She stated that Dr. Gabelman treated her at that
22 time with physical therapy and medication.

23 Q. Who told you that she was treated by Dr. Gabelmahn
24 for physical therapy and medication?

25 A, She did.
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Q. As 1t pertained to what accident?
A. The 1983 accident.
Q. Doctor, is there something known as the patient-

physician privilege?
A. Sure.
Q. Okay. Does that require a physician not to
reveal information as to what transpires between a
patient and their physician?

MR . GOLDENSE: Objection.
A. I think, within reason, as long as -- 1I"m not
really sure what the legal ramifications are --
Q. I"m not asking you as a lawyer: just tell pe what
you understand as a doctor.
A. I would understand that --

MR . GOLDENSE: Note my continuing

objection.

A. - a patient would have to sign a release 4
permit me to release the information.
Q. As it pertains to Defendants®™ Exhibit A, do you

recognize the top page of that document?

A. of A?

Q. Yes, sir.

A. The top page, yes.
Q. Is a what, sir?

A. It"s a subpoena.
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Q. Doctor, who is the author of that letter?
A You are.

Q And to whom was that letter directed, sir?
A. To Mr. Goldense.

Q. And 1t has been stipulated that letter was
received.

Finally, sir, you were asked some gquestions

relating to the history and the importance of history.

Do you recall that portion of the deposition

cross-examination?

A

Q.

Yes.

Doctor, there were certain portions of the

history that the plaintiff related to you that 1 did

not

inquire into during the course of my direct

examination; 1s that accurate?

A.

Q.

Yes.

Doctor, the primary purpose why we're here

tonight, and why 1 asked you to give an opinion as to

her condition, was to give an evaluation as to how she

was upon your examination, as well as what, if any,

impact or injury was occasioned to her by the accident

at

issue in this case, correct?

MR. GOLDENSE: Objection. As to form,

Counsel .

That's my understanding.

MORSE. GANTVRRA £ uwAnAw
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MR. CURTIN: And finally, Doctor, I would
like to thank you for your time and testimony. |
have nothing more.
RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MrR. GOLDENSE:
Q. Doctor, keep Defendants®™ Exhibit A in front of
you. It"s the records from pr. Gabelman.

Mr. Curtin just asked you whether or not iIn any
of the 1988 visits she was asked to return on a
regularly scheduled basis.

Do you remember that question just now in his
redirect examination?
A. I think he was directing -- the question was ©°n
how many dates did she not have the order or the
request to return.

But as | said, most of the time, there were
requests to return.
Q. And, in fact, when she reported her flare-up of
pain to Dr. Gabelman on December 30th, 1988, he
referred her to therapy and asked her to return in forur
weeks: is that correct?
A. That"s correct. She didn®"t show up until nine
months later, though.
a. But he did schedule her?

A. l don"t know that i1t was scheduled.

RAAAT £ TN R NP PTIRP VN v - e - —_
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Q. Okay. Now --

A. Apparently i1t was scheduled, and she didn*"t show
up Ffor that or the subsequent visit.

Q. You are aware of the fact that she i1s married?
A. I didn"t ask her, but I assumed that she was.

MR. GOLDENSE: I have nothing further.
That"s fine.

MR. CURTIN: Thank you, Doctor. I have
nothing further.

MR. GOLDENSE: For the record, I will
waive the requirement of filing Doctor~"s
deposition testimony, either by way of filing the
videotape or the court reporter®s stenographic
report of the deposition,

(Thereupon, a discussion was had off
the recorgd.)

THE VIDEOTAPE OPERATOR: Doctor, do you
wish to waive signature?

THE WETNESS: 1 waive my right to review
both the transcript and the tape.

(Deposition concluded; sighature waived.)

MORSE CANTUYVFRA £ WATAD
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CERTIFICATE

State of Ohio, )

County of Cuyahoga. )

I, Toni M. Salopek, Registered Professional
Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of
Ohio, duly commissioned and qualified, do hereby

certify that the within-named ROBERT CURTIS CORN, M.D.

was by me TfTirst duly sworn to testify to the truth, the

whole truth, and nothing but the truth in the cause
aforesaid: that the testimony as above set forth was
reduced to writing by me, by means of stenotype, and
was later transcribed into typewriting under my

direction by computer-aided transcription; that 1 am

not a relative or attorney of either party or otherwise

interested in the event of this action.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
and affixed my seal of office at Cleveland, Ohio, on

this 26th day of November, 13990.

U Sy

IAEN—2 220D & GO
Toni M. Salopek, Notary Public
in and for the State of Ohio.
Registered Professional Reporter
My Commission expires 9/7/94

MORSE. GANTVRRG & WANAaw
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NOTARY'S SUBPOENA

Edward H. Gabelman, M.h.‘, .

s . .
' The State Of ("“0 } SS: 0 c/o Orthopedic Associat;keslﬂév ’

AN

CUYAHOGA COUNTY

v AR -

L NN
.

~

!

o

Beachwood, Ohio 44122i_“.7..-, .
Attention:, Records Custodian,,\,ﬁil\-,;fsﬁ‘

|
e B

You are hereby commanded to appear before me, a Notary Public in and for ¢he County and State aﬂ,,{,g;,
L at the office of G, Michael Curtin, Esq.; Keller, Scully & Williams,
. 330 Hanna Building,
in the City of Cleveland, County of Cuyahoga, State of Ohio, on Wednesday the 29th day

August, A 0.7990 ,at 11:30 o'clock A. M., then and there fo give evidence g,

the {ruth to say in a certain action pending in the Court of Common Pleas-Lake County, .ot

entitled _ . -
Rosalie Cook, Plaintiff,

VS.
Elizabeth Masitto, et al., Defendants,

being cause No. 89 CIV 1144 in said court, on the part of the defendant.

You are further commanded to 4s/ng with you the following, to wit:

Any and all medical records, reports, x-ray reports
and office notes you have pertaining to:
Rosalie Cook

Date of Birth: 7-31-65
Social Security No. 289-68-0373

RECEIVED

, Keller, Scully & Williams Co., LP.A. -

Please Note: Certified copies may be mailed instead

of appearance, however, please contact
G. Michael Curtin, Esqg., at 566-7100, upon receipt

of this subpoena.

This you no wise omit, under the penalty of the /aw.
Given under my hand and official seal, this 17th day of August, A D. 1990

AL 24 ;QA cl

T ST s TRy
Notary P

771-33s50 . / 4 M}c

I MORSE, GANTVERG & HODGE
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MAY 1'0 1959 _\/L@ Ly bt

ie UUL OXTHOPEDIC ASSCCIA ES
£ RIUM CENTER
23757 MZRCANTILE RC/)
~TA"H00D, OHIO: 441%7

=
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‘SEP 2 5 1989 _ o.v. DR. G.: The patient still notes pain in the back occurring 3-4 ti
a week lasting 1/2 hr at a time, During this period the pains are sharp and of short durati
Her work involves mainly standing, She did not have definite radicular symptoms.

physical exam revealed tenderness. There was no definite spasm. There was some
restriction of lumbar motion with flexion to 70°, extension 20°. SLR produced pain at 70°.
Reflexes were equal.

Treatment: work with back exercises, back support was recommended. Also consider
unit, Flexeril t.1.d. prn, return 6 weeks.

NOV. 6 1939—_MO W )

FE3 2 1 1920 - o0.v. R. 6. The patient has noted some increased pain in the buttock area
and lower back on the left. No history of new injuries. She is approx. 6 months pregnant.

she stopped taking all medication. She ind!cated the TNS unit is helpful but she did not ta
it because she is pregnant. She had no radicular symptoms. _

physical exam today revealed a normal gait. There was some tenderness in the lumb
area With some restriction of motion, flexion and extension. MNo definite spasm. No neurolo
findings.

Treatment: intermittent heat at rest. Will be seen after the delivery.



8 6699¢

| _kCH.00D ORTHOPECIC ASSOCIATES
ARIUM CENTER

23250 MERCANTILE ROAD

BEACHWOOD, 0HI0 44122

JUN 2 4 40

bothers her. She still notes some intermittent pain in the lower back pain, mainly on the le
She did not have numbness or tingling.

Physical exam revealed normal cervical motion without tenderness or spasm, There
was some restriction of lumbar motion. There was tenderness in the left lower back area. SI
on the left produced pain at 60°, unremarkable on the right, Reflexes were equal. Normal ge

Finish therapy, work with back exercises, swimming, medication, Return 4 weeks,

- 0.V. DR. C.: The patient has noted improvement, Her neck no longer

v .. .

JuL 2 7. 1988 _ ov. DR. G.: The patient overall does feel better, She still notes inter
pain mainly in the left buttock and occasionally will extend into the left lower extremity wi
numbness and tingling. She was on vacation and had no difficulty,

Physical exam revealed tenderness in the left buttock. SLR produced some discomfort
70" on the left, but was unrmearkable on the right. There was slight tenderness but no spasn
the lumbar spine. Motion was restricted.

Treatment: refer Dr. Mars for neurological evaluation. Continue medication, return E

19 9)% PC PHA’LMAQ\\— Veoveue B Z0- VTR LR
1 crn O
3 1988 - 0.v. DR. G.: The patient overall feels much improved. She (\
occasionally feels much improved. She-notes some discomfort in the back. She had no
neurological symptoms. She found therapy helpful and Flexeril.
Physical exam at this time was negative. Return as needed. Will continue with
exercises and use mild analgesics as necessary.

* 5 q o (‘ (‘ ] Cadoes —Q l/ ~‘(C~ 2 \;-\.
?‘ /‘% & \ {’ < Ui L{)‘ “ ‘ © 2 PK . Sl‘o If\((‘m.,(fd S)\G Meckye

v}CUO rLt.‘.&p o “D (,‘;ar,c. . R\ /e'\‘a‘;-1 e "\‘a’f‘ S ?"QP:I ‘b\-k;&“ Sl’\c cern Ul
cCow ~}'. NN e . e W.\‘.\(.(ﬂ- 28 \"‘Zl\-\;u‘v\ &P.\. QO\]- S‘EP&_ a‘c}' .

SEP ;8 1988 @M& CQQA( @g C‘(f@’j‘

r 2 1008 ;
neT 9 +0- 0,v. DR. G.: The patient feels that her neck and back no longer bother he
She has no symptoms referable to the injured areas.

Physical exam unremarkable, Return as needed.

DEC 3 0 1968 - o.v. DR. C.. The patient has done well without pain until 2 days ago when
she noted'flare up of pain in the lower back. She had been working. She does a lot of stand
and bends over to pick up boxes. She has some help with some boxes, The pain is in the left
buttocks and extends into the left lateral thigh. No numbness or tingling. There was tender
and spasm in the lumbar area. Flexion to 70°, extension 20°. SLR on the left produced pain ,

60°, on the right to 90°. There was some low back pain. Nbo leg pain. Reflexes were equal.
had a normal gait, Flexeril t.i.d., may work, Refer for therapy, REturn 4 weeks.



31 AGHy, 00D ORTHOPEDIC ASSOCIATES
o ATRIUM CENTER -~
93250 MERCANTILE ROAD

. REACH:VOOD, OHI0 44122 et s é} (oQQ %,
Name CO 0{< ! EO&LJ e Address +

f Phone
LASY NAME FIRST NAME INITIAL

Present Employer

Phone
Age Sex D.0O.B. ——————————— Referred By Resp. Party
Insurance Claim # D.O.l
Employer at Time of Injury Attorney

-

APR 20 1908 - O . mﬂ%f\ NV SIS ch Loovds
LRI \
%Wm =100 FA

: 00 P
i%hm\) S VATITSUADIES %\ 8%

‘»). ADE %% Patye~ SRS o Sl 4 RN (\x./\,vuu S (e Jo
2 A e (forae S 20 Y sade w—ta—7e_c\

Yo crrak (,v\w VAR (e b O ATAL. (Fanml L HR d‘&f\\‘\'

Ulun 2y L Wﬂlk (I =\11,3§S
way 11 2088 4)0 S f/()/ﬂ/

. - 7 2 LIAT ey -
_ /.0 //{/M et :
Z;L/W /‘/v—;f//j/ 3 /-«“ Ay = e S

¢ /87 - ‘ *

—
— b

. :

Ju 3 1988 . O0V. DR. G.: The patient noted some increased pain in the back in the
left lower extremity with numbness and tingling | week ago. No history of new injuries. The
was no loss of bowel or bladder control. She still notes some neck pain. She found therapy
quite helpful. She indicated her work involved Finishing products for the automotive industr
which weighed 15 pounds a piece. She would have to bend over to lift each of these to do the
finishing process. She also had to lift heavy boxes of these. She was laid off a few weeks

Physical exam revealed tenderness, spasm and restriction of lumbar motion. There
was some tenderness.over the cervical area, but no restriction of motion or spasm. Reflexes
were equal in the upper and lower extremities. SLR produced pain at 60° on the left and 70°
the right. She had a normal gait.

Treatment: swimming, refer for therapy, continue medication. Obtain lumbar CT, r
3 weeks.
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ADVANCED IMAGING
CT SCANNING
ATRIUM CENTER

23150 MERCANTILE ROAD
REACHWOOD. OHIO 44122

TELEPHONE 292-0607

PATIENT NAME: Rosalia Cook
DATE; June 3, 1988

RAERRNINACERYATc 1RRP9Pdward H. Gabelman, H.D.

CT SCAN OF L3-L4, .L4-L5 AND L5-S1 DISCS;

Axial CT sections of the lumbar spine were obtained from tha
lower body of L3 to the upper body of S1 vertebrae followed
by multi-planar, sagittal and coronal reconstructions,

LL3-L4 and L5-51 digcs appear normal and they show no
herniation. There is bulging annulus and probable focal
herniation of L4-LS disc centrally indenting the thecal sac
and possibly the right nerve root: (scan #16 and 17). The
spinal canal and lateral recesses at L4-LS disc region appear
narrowed. The rest of the exam ia unremarkable,

IMPRESSION;

Normal L3-L4 and L5-S1 discs. Bulging annulus and probably
herniation of L4-L5 disc indenting the thecal sac and narva
root with narrowing of the corresponding spinal canal and
lateral recesases.

4/ Z/ﬂmc” V2805

A. EL. Shaar, M.D?

&
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September 4, 1990

David W. Goldense, Esq.
920 Terminal Tower
Cleveland, OH 44113

RE:t Rosalie Cook vs. Elizabeth Masitto et al
Lake County Common Pleas Court
Case No. 89 CIv 1144
Our file: 9083-M

Dear lir. Goldenset

Please allow this letter to serve as formal notification that I
have scheduled Dr. Robert Corn's video tape deposition for
November 12, 1990 at 5:30 p.m. Dr. Corn's office is located at
350 Brainard Road, NMignland Helghts, Ohio.

I will naturally provide you with Dr. Corn's report well before
the deposition., However, the delay 1S attributable to the fact
that [ was awaiting receipt of the Advanced Imagining CAT scans
which were only recently transmitted by that organization to Dr.
Corn"s attention. On that basis, I have requested Dr. Corn to
produce his report a8 soon as practicable.

Should you have any queations, please do not hesitate to contact
me.

Thank you for your attention to this letter,
Sincerely yours,
KELLER, SCULLY & WILLIAMS CO., L.P.A.

Byt
G. Michael Curtin

GMmeob

cc:' Andrevw Thomas
CLO15037RH

~ DEFENDANT'S DEPOSITION
EXHIBIT

ié%zh'

1240
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that the combination of these drugs enhance the
endorphin production or make the endorphins work
for efficiently, so to speak.

These can cause less pain and are
interpreted as improvement in the patient's
subkjective ccmylaints.

Dié Mr. Prete cppear tc¢ vou to be motivated tTO

concur hies pain?
/\_D

Abs utely, no guestion about that., As |
testified previously, 1 wish most of our chronic
pain patients had that kind of attitude because
It is an excellent attitude.
MR . GARDNER : Off the record,
(Thereupon, a discussion was had off
the record.)
BY MR. GARDNER:
Doctor, did you have lr. Prete take his shirt
off, remove his rneck tie for your examination?
I believe so, yes.
Were you present in the room when lr. Prete put
his neck tie back on and shirt back on?
I doubt 1it, I really don't remember.
Well, I will represent to you professionally
that you were during part of the time that he

put his tie back on.

Diane M. Stevenson, RPR
Morse, Gantverg & Hodge
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r'id you happen to notice how he used his
fingers to put his tie back on or button his
shirt.
MR. WILLIAMS : Objection.
No, 1 didn't.
Tf Mr. Prete didn't really use his thumbs but
juz+ used nLis forefingers to put his neck tie on
and butter his shirt, you failed to observe that
es part of your examination?
MR. WILLIAMS: Objection.
I was finished with the examination at that
point. I did observe that he was using--1think

T stated that previously, that he was not using

his thumbs appropriately. I think 1 stated. that

Q‘s— § m
previouvsly.

Did you discuss with Mr. Prete what kinds of

work he has to do and what kinds of equipment he

has to use?

Yes,

MR . GARDNER: Okay, Doctor, 1 think
that is all | have. Mr. Williams may have some
additional questions. Thank you very much.

MR. WILLIAMS: No, | have no further

questions, either. Doctor, would you waive your
right to review the videotape and also waive

Diane M. Stevenson, RPR
Morse, Gantverg & Hodge
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your right to read the transcript of this
¢ eposition.
THE WITNESS: Yes.
MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you, Doctor,
have nothing further.
MR. PALCHO: Will Counsel waive
filing cf the tape?
MR. GZRDHER: Yes.
MR. WILLIAMNMS: Yes.
(DEPOSITION CONCLUDED.)
(SIGNATURE WAIVED.)

Diane M. Stevenson, RPR
Morse, Gantverg & Hodge
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CERTIFICATE

State of Chio, )
) SS:
County of Cuyahoga.)

I, Diane M. Stevenson, a Registered
Professional Reporter and Notary Public in and
for the State of Ohio, duly commissioned and
quelified, do hereby certify that the
within-named witness, ROBERT CORE, M.D., was by
me first duly sworn to testify the truth, the
whole truth and nothing but the truth in the
cause aforesaid; that the testimony then given
by him was by me reduced to stenotypy in the
presence of said witness, afterwards transcribed
by means of computer-aided transcription, and
that the foregoing is a true and correct
transcript of the testimony as given by him as
aforesaid.

I do further certify that this deposition
was taken at the time and place in the foregoing

caption specified, and was completed without
adjournment.

I do further certify that I am not a

relative, employee or attorney of any party, or
otherwise interested in the event of this
action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed seal of office at Cleveland,
Ohio, on this ﬁﬁf day of _2p¥ '
1987.

Oy 2 S trsmer>

Diane M. Stevenson, RPR
Notary Public in and for
The State of Ohio.

My Commission expires October 26, 1990.

Diane M. Stevenson, RPR
Morse, Gantverg & Hodge
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NAME COOK, Rosalee DATE: 8/20/90

ADDRESS: D.O.l:
PHONE: EMPLOYER:
REFERREDBY: IC#

Patient evaluated for an IME. DOI 4/18/88. Essentially she wes rearended. The details are
in the enlosed chart note.

PHYSICAL EXAMINATION was entirely within normal limits, There was no spasm or dysmetria.
Full ROM in both her neck and upper baclé, shoulders, elbows, wrists and hands. N signs of
any neurological impingement. SLR to 90 in both the sitting and supine positions.

Most of her low back discomfort was just to the left center of midline, radiating into the
sacroiliac joint. This is what she called her buttocks. She has had no medical care
recently. She was pregnant until approximately June 8, 1990 when she delivered her second
child. She also was in a previous MVA injuring her neck and low back in 1983. She stated
there has been no problems for the last 5 years.

Will complete an IME after | review the additional medical records, (RCC/bn)




